
AGENDA: October 28, 2020 
All Documents for public review on file with the District’s secretary located at 806 Palm Canyon Drive, Borrego Springs CA 92004 
Any public record provided to a majority of the Board of Directors less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, regarding any item on the open session 
portion of this agenda, is available for public inspection during normal business hours at the Office of the Board Secretary, located at 806 Palm 
Canyon Drive, Borrego Springs CA 92004. 

The Borrego Springs Water District complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.  Persons with special needs should call Geoff Poole – Board 
Secretary at (760) 767 – 5806 at least 48 hours in advance of the start of this meeting, in order to enable the District to make reasonable 
arrangements to ensure accessibility. 

If you challenge any action of the Board of Directors in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the 
public hearing, or in written correspondence delivered to the Board of Directors (c/o the Board Secretary) at, or prior to, the public hearing. 

Borrego Water District Board of Directors 

Adjourned Regular Board Meeting

October 28, 2020 @ 9:00 a.m. 

806 Palm Canyon Drive 

Borrego Springs, CA  92004 

COVID-19 UPDATE: The Borrego Water District Board of Directors meeting as scheduled in an electronic 

format. BWD will be providing public access to the Meeting thru electronic means only to minimize the 

spread of the COVID-19 virus, based upon direction from the California Department of Public Health, the 

California Governor’s Office and the County Public Health Office. Anyone who wants to listen to or 

participate in the meeting is encouraged to observe the GO TO MEETING at: 

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/457593461 

You can also dial in using your phone. 

1 (872) 240-3412 

Access Code: 457-593-461 

New to GoToMeeting? Get the app now and be ready when your first meeting starts: 

https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/457593461 

I. OPENING PROCEDURES -

A. Call to Order:

B. Pledge of Allegiance

C. Roll Call

D. Approval of Agenda

E. Approval of Minutes

1. September 8, 2020 Special Board Meeting

2. September 22, 2020 Regular Board Meeting

F. Comments from the Public & Requests for Future Agenda Items (may be limited to 3 min)

G. Comments from Directors

H. Correspondence Received from the Public- None

II. ITEMS FOR BOARD CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION -

A. Resolution No. 2020-10-01 Approving a Purchase and Sale Agreement With Borrego Springs

Unified School District for the Acquisition of Real Property, Making CEQA-Related Findings

and Authorizing Staff to File Notice of Exemption. 2nd Production Well Replacement – G

Poole

B. 2nd Production Well: Project Schedule & Biology, Cultural and California Environmental

Quality Act – Dudek Eng.

C. Schedule for San Diego County Water Authority Borrego Springs Outreach on Regional

Conveyance System – K Dice/G Poole

(3-10)

(11-16)

(17-24)

(25)

1

https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/457593461


AGENDA: October 28, 2020 
All Documents for public review on file with the District’s secretary located at 806 Palm Canyon Drive, Borrego Springs CA 92004 
Any public record provided to a majority of the Board of Directors less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, regarding any item on the open session 
portion of this agenda, is available for public inspection during normal business hours at the Office of the Board Secretary, located at 806 Palm 
Canyon Drive, Borrego Springs CA 92004. 

The Borrego Springs Water District complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.  Persons with special needs should call Geoff Poole – Board 
Secretary at (760) 767 – 5806 at least 48 hours in advance of the start of this meeting, in order to enable the District to make reasonable 
arrangements to ensure accessibility. 

If you challenge any action of the Board of Directors in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the 
public hearing, or in written correspondence delivered to the Board of Directors (c/o the Board Secretary) at, or prior to, the public hearing. 

D. Interim Borrego Springs Subbasin Watermaster Board – G Poole, D Duncan/K Dice

1. TAC Meeting Summary – D Duncan/G Poole

2. Hemp Farming in Anza Response - D Duncan/G Poole

E. Approval for transfer of three EDU’s from Rosalva Thomas Siercks to Juan C. Vazquez

III. STANDING AND AD-HOC BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS –

A. STANDING:

1. Operations and Infrastructure – Delahay/Duncan

2. AD HOC:

a. Stipulated Judgment Implementation – Brecht/Duncan

b. Risk Management/Pandemic – Brecht/Dice

c. Grant Funding – Dice/Johnson

d. Association of California Water Agencies/Joint Powers Authority – Dice/Johnson

e. Organizational Staffing - Dice/Duncan

f. Prop 218 and BWD Developers’ Policy – Brecht

IV. MONTHLY FINANCIAL & OPERATIONS REPORTS

A. Financial Reports: August 2020

1. 2020-21 Budget Update -J Clabaugh, VERBAL

B. Water and Wastewater Operations Report: August 2020

C. Water Production/Use Records: August 2020

V. STAFF REPORTS - VERBAL

A. Administration – Diana Del Bono

1. High Water Bill Waiver Policy Update

B. Waste Water Operations – Roy Martinez

C. Water Operations – Alan Asche

D. Engineering – David Dale

E. General Manager - G Poole

1. Recognition of Retiring Director Ray Delahay

VI. CLOSED SESSION:

A. Conference with Legal Counsel - Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (3)

of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9: (Two (2) potential cases)

B. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation (BWD v. All Persons Who Claim a

Right to Extract Groundwater, et al. (San Diego Superior Court case no. 37-2020-00005776)

VII. CLOSING PROCEDURE: The next Board Meeting is scheduled for November 10, 2020 to be

available online. See Board Agenda at BorregoWD.org for details, available at least 72 hours

before the meeting

(26)

(27-31)

(32-47)

(48-54)
(55-56)

(57)

2



Special Minutes:  September 8, 2020 1 

Borrego Water District Board of Directors 

MINUTES 

Special Meeting  

September 8, 2020 @ 9:00 a.m. 

806 Palm Canyon Drive 

Borrego Springs, CA 92004 

I. OPENING PROCEDURES

A. Call to Order:  President Dice called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m.

B. Pledge of Allegiance:  Those present stood for the Pledge of Allegiance.

C. Roll Call: Directors: Present:   President Dice, Vice-President 

Brecht, Secretary/Treasurer Duncan, 

Delahay, Johnson 

Staff: Geoff Poole, General Manager 

Jessica Clabaugh, Finance Officer 

David Dale, District Engineer 

Esmeralda Garcia, Administrative Assistant 

Wendy Quinn, Recording Secretary  

Public:  Tammy Baker  Gary Worobec, Take Back 

David Garmon   Anza 

D. Approval of Agenda:  MSC: Brecht/Duncan approving the Agenda as written.

The roll call vote was unanimous. 

E. Approval of Minutes:  None

F. Comments from the Public and Requests for Future Agenda Items:  None

G. Comments from Directors: President Dice reminded the Directors to submit

comments for Geoff Poole’s performance evaluation. 

H. Correspondence Received from the Public:

1. Hemp Cultivation in Coyote Creek Watershed and Potential Impact to BS

Basin Inflows.  Mr. Poole invited the Board’s attention to correspondence in the Board package 

from Gary Worobec regarding hemp cultivation in the Anza-Terwilliger Basin.  Mr. Worobec, 

representing Take Back Anza, explained that the County began last year issuing permits for 

hemp cultivation.  Hemp uses 300 times more water per acre than grapes.  The Riverside County 

Watermaster sent letters to the County, State, Water Company and Sierra Club regarding the 

issue.  The Planning Commission has ceased issuing hemp permits for the Santa Margarita 

Watershed, but there is a small area within the Anza-Terwilliger Basin that is outside that 

Watershed.  It is the headwaters for Coyote Creek, from which Borrego Springs gets most of its 

water.  Mr. Worobec was seeking BWD support to include that part of the Anza-Terwilliger 

Basin in the ban on hemp permits.  He suggested a letter to Riverside County, and perhaps a 

letter from Supervisor Desmond to the Riverside County District 3 Supervisor.  Director Brecht 

asked Mr. Worobec to send Mr. Poole the addresses for the letters, and to put the matter on the 

next BWD Agenda.  President Dice will work with Trey Driscoll on the letters.  She asked Mr. 

Worobec to let her know the timing and the name of the District 3 Supervisor. 

II. ITEMS FOR BOARD CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION

A. San Diego County Water Authority Proposed Regional Conveyance System (RCS)

through Borrego Springs: Mr. Poole referred to the Board’s letter, approved at the last meeting, 

to the SDCWA in anticipation of their September 27 meeting.  The SDCWA Board was 

scheduled to consider the continuation of the study of the Regional Conveyance System, but the 

item was deferred until late November to allow more time to study issues, including a 

disagreement between the SDCWA and an independent consultant retained by its Member 

Agencies.  In the interim, there will be a workshop and outreach in Borrego Springs.   

3



Special Minutes:  September 8, 2020 2 

 Director Brecht pointed out that BWD’s letter was an effort to dispel the rumor that 

BWD was enthusiastically in favor of the RCS route through Borrego Springs.  However, the 

letter was buried in the SDCWA Agenda material, and some Board members didn’t even see it.  

It was not discussed at the meeting.  The study on behalf of the Member Agencies by Black and 

Veatch concluded that there may have been errors in calculation of the cost of the RCS.  Director 

Brecht recommended that BWD focus on protecting the subbasin.  He was concerned about 

potential conjunctive use, and the deterioration of Borrego’s water quality by mixing it with 

Colorado River water.  MSC: Brecht/Duncan assigning the Risk Management/Pandemic 

Committee to develop another letter to the SDCWA for its November meeting, working with 

Dudek and Ensi, and bring a draft to the next BWD meeting.  The roll call vote was 

unanimous. 

 B. Draft Response to County’s Email from BWD Regarding Unknown Status of 

Wells in Subbasin:  Mr. Poole referred to the District’s previous letter to the County, requesting 

assistance in identifying the status of wells in Borrego Springs.  The County’s response was in 

the Board package, indicating they could not comply with the request; however, if the District 

informs them of improperly abandoned wells, they will take action.  Also included in the Board 

package was a draft response from BWD to the County.   

 David Garmon noted that he had discussed the subject with Jamelle McCullough of the 

County while serving on Supervisor Desmond’s Environmental Subcommittee.  She indicated 

that if BWD would send a letter to every well operator asking for the status of their well, the 

County would consider those that didn’t respond actionable and would follow up.  Director 

Brecht asked to see the statement in writing, and Mr. Garmon and Director Duncan, who 

remembered seeing it, agreed to look for it. 

 C. Begin Process to Replace Twin Tanks:  Mr. Poole addressed the question of 

whether to proceed with the Twin Tanks replacement now or wait until the grant application, 

which is in the final stages, has been approved.  The technical review for the application has 

been done, and it is now in the contract-writing phase.  Jessica Clabaugh has provided bond 

information requested by DWR.  It is a reimbursement grant, so the District would have to 

provide the money up front anyway.  Mr. Poole felt confident the grant would be approved.  

David Dale reported that he had inspected the Twin Tanks inside and out, and he and Alan Asche 

videoed the interior.  The steel bolts connecting the panels inside the Tanks are severely corroded, 

and Mr. Dale expressed concern regarding a potential catastrophic failure.  He did not feel they 

could be rehabilitated.  There were also some leaks in the floor, but the cost to repair them would 

likely outweigh replacement costs.  Mr. Dale and Mr. Asche felt the Tanks, which are almost 60 

years old, should be replaced as soon as possible.   

 Mr. Poole noted that plans and specifications had already been prepared and reviewed by 

the State.  Bid documents now need to be developed.  There is also a question of where the 

replacement tank will be located.  The existing Twin Tanks are on State Park land, but the 

District owns a nearby parcel.  The State will accept either location, but the current plan is to use 

the existing site, demolish the Twin Tanks and then build the new one.  A property exchange 

with the Park may be negotiated.  MSC: Brecht/Johnson initiating preparation of bid 

documents for replacement of the Twin Tanks.  The roll call vote was unanimous. 

 D. Selection of Consultant to Upgrade SCADA/Telemetry System:  Mr. Poole 

reported that Operations staff had issues regarding SCADA’s ability to remotely monitor the 

control system.  It is past its useful life, and replacement parts are no longer available.  Mr. 

Asche and Mr. Dale put together a design and received four proposals.  Mr. Dale reported that 

the quotes ranged from $88,000 to $114,000, which was anticipated in the CIP.  The project is 

somewhat urgent because of overtime and spillage resulting from the old system.  MSC: 

Brecht/Johnson authorizing staff to move forward with purchase of a new SCADA system.  

The roll call vote was unanimous.  

  

4



Special Minutes:  September 8, 2020 3 

 E. Borrego Springs Basin Interim Watermaster:   

  1. Final Memo to Interim Watermaster of Subbasin Regarding Some Initial 

Risk Management Issues for WM’s Consideration.  Mr. Poole invited the Board’s attention to the 

final draft of a memo to the WMB in the Board package.  Director Duncan will submit it to 

Samantha Adams. 

  2. Watermaster Request for BWD Assistance with Meter Reading.  Mr. 

Poole reported that the WMB was requesting BWD to perform the initial meter reading.  The 

future has not yet been determined.  Mr. Poole is working with Ms. Adams and JPIA on 

insurance issues.  Director Brecht expressed concern regarding data-related issues.  Mr. Poole 

explained that Wildermuth Environmental is an expert in data integrity and data security. 

  3. Agenda Items for September 10, 2020.  Mr. Poole reported that the WMB 

Agenda had not yet been published.   

 

III. STAFF REPORTS 

 A. Water Sales and Revenues Update:  Ms. Clabaugh presented a graph depicting 

water revenue and usage.   Water revenues are up 3.85 percent as compared to last year, and the 

water usage is up 10 percent.  Over three years, water consumption is about five percent lower.  

Sewer charges are relatively stable.  Ms. Clabaugh went on the report on the aging accounts.  

The 30-60-day, 60-90-day and over 120-day late bills increased since last year, but the 90-120-

day late bills decreased.  Delinquent letters have been sent out.  Staff is examining individual 

accounts and may set up payment plans for those that are late but not normally. 

 B. Publication of Documents: 

  1. T2 attorney’s suggested letter to SDCWA re: RCS.   

  2. BWD Final Draft Letter to SDCWA re: RCS. 

  The referenced letters were included in the Board package. 

 C. Tentative Schedule with Fieldman Rolapp Associates (FRA) and Raftelis 

Financial concerning CIP financing plan, Cost of Service Study, and Developer’s Policy changes:  

Mr. Poole invited the Board’s attention to the schedule in the Board package.  He hoped to adopt 

the new Developer’s Policy at the next Board meeting.  It has been reviewed and approved by 

Jim Bennett.   

 D. BWD Website Update:  Mr. Poole reported that a new website, borregowd.org, 

has replaced the previous BVGSP.org.  He welcomed requests for new information.  Meet 

Panchal is preparing to return to India, and Esmeralda Garcia will be maintaining the website.  

Director Johnson pointed out that the old website is still active, and Mr. Poole agreed to take care 

of it.  Ms. Garcia explained that currently both websites are being updated. 

 

IV. CLOSED SESSION: 

 A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to 

paragraph (3) of subdivision (d) of Government Code Section 54956.9: (One (1) potential case): 

 B. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation (BWD v. All Persons Who 

Claim a Right to Extract Groundwater, et al., San Diego Superior Court case no. 37-2020-

00005776): 

 C. Performance Review: Performance Evaluation of General Manager: GM 

Performance Review – Conference for Public Employee Performance Evaluation – Title: 

General Manager Employee Performance Review – pursuant to subdivision (d)(4) of 

Government Code Section 54957: 

 The Board adjourned to closed session at 10:40 a.m., and thereafter, the open session 

reconvened.  There was no reportable action. 

   

5



Special Minutes:  September 8, 2020 4 

V. CLOSING PROCEDURE 

  The next Board Meeting is scheduled for September 22, 2020 at Borrego Water District, 

806 Palm Canyon Drive, Borrego Springs, CA 92004.  There being no further business, the 

Board adjourned.   

6



Minutes:  September 22, 2020 1 

Borrego Water District Board of Directors 

MINUTES 

Regular Meeting 

September 22, 2020 @ 9:00 a.m. 

806 Palm Canyon Drive 

Borrego Springs, CA 92004 

 

I. OPENING PROCEDURES 

 A. Call to Order:  President Dice called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. 

 B. Pledge of Allegiance:  Those present stood for the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 C.  Roll Call:   Directors: Present:   President Dice, Vice President  

         Brecht, Secretary/Treasurer   

         Duncan, Delahay, Johnson   

     Staff:  Geoff Poole, General Manager 

       David Dale, District Engineer 

       Jessica Clabaugh, Finance Officer 

       Alan Asche, Operations Manager 

       Diana Del Bono, Administration Manager 

       Roy Martinez, WTF Operator III 

       Esmeralda Garcia, Administrative Assistant 

       Wendy Quinn, Recording Secretary 

  Public:  Ray Lennox, State Park Tammy Baker 

    Rebecca Falk 

 D. Approval of Agenda:  MSC: Brecht/Johnson approving the Agenda as written.  

The roll call vote was unanimous. 

 E.  Approval of Minutes: 

  1. August 11, 2020 Special Board Meeting.  MSC: Brecht/Johnson approving 

the Minutes of the Special Board Meeting of August 11, 2020 as written.  The roll call vote 

was unanimous.    

  2. August 25, 2020 Regular Board Meeting.    

  MSC: Brecht/Johnson approving the Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of 

August 25, 2020 as corrected (Item II.E should refer to Trey Driscoll, not Todd).  The roll call 

vote was unanimous. 

 F. Comments from the Public and Requests for Future Agenda Items:  None 

 G. Comments from Directors: None 

 H. Correspondence Received from the Public: 

  1. Martha Palacio – Request for Relief of High Water Bill.  Esmeralda 

Garcia reported that Martha Palacio, who is on a payment plan for overdue water bills, was 

requesting relief from a high bill due to a water leak.  District policy provides for one forgiveness 

in a five-year period, which she had already used.  MSC: Brecht/Duncan granting the requested 

adjustment due to COVID and reviewing the once-in-five-years forgiveness policy.  The roll 

call vote was unanimous. 

     

II. ITEMS FOR BOARD CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION  

 A. Letter from BWD to San Diego County Water Authority re: Regional 

Conveyance System:  Director Brecht referred to the District’s letter in August to the SDCWA 

Board, aiming to dispel the rumor that BWD supported the RCS through Borrego Springs.  

Subsequently, the Risk Management/Pandemic Committee was requested to write another letter, 

working with Dudek.  The draft letter was included in the Board package, and addresses 

additional concerns regarding potential water quality and cost issues.   

7



Minutes:  September 22, 2020 2 

 Director Duncan noted that the draft letter assumes the SDCWA is looking for 

conjunctive use, although they have said it is not part of their study.  President Dice suggested 

adding, “If your choice of a route includes conjunctive use, here are our concerns.”  Geoff Poole 

noted that he had served on the SDCWA Board and on its subcommittee looking at alternative 

routes for the RCS.  They felt storage in Borrego would be nice, but that was not the only 

advantage of that route.  This northern route would serve a larger area through their Twin Oaks 

treatment plant. 

 MSC: Brecht/Johnson authorizing transmission of a letter to SDCWA, clarifying 

BWD’s concerns; and requesting President Dice and Director Johnson to finalize the draft 

and bring it back to the next meeting.  The roll call vote was unanimous. 

 B. Letter to Riverside Board of Supervisors re: Hemp Farming in Anza/Terwilliger:  

Mr. Poole reported that the Riverside Board of Supervisors had deferred its decision on hemp 

farming until October 15.  A draft letter to the Riverside Board was provided in the BWD Board 

package, and included input from Gary Worobec of Take Back Anza.  Director Johnson 

suggested referencing SGMA.  MSC: Brecht/Duncan referring the draft letter to President 

Dice and Director Johnson to be finalized and transmitted to the Riverside Board of 

Supervisors with a copy to San Diego Supervisor Jim Desmond.    

 C. Interim Borrego Springs Subbasin Watermaster Board:   

  1. Meter Reading Agreement.  Mr. Poole invited the Board’s attention to the 

Meter Reading Agreement between BWD and the WMB in the Board package.  MSC: 

Brecht/Duncan approving the Meter Reading Agreement.  The roll call vote was unanimous. 

  2. Right of Entry Form.  MSC: Brecht/Duncan approving the Entry Permit 

for meter reading.  The roll call vote was unanimous. 

  3. Items for September 24, 2020 Agenda.  Director Duncan reported that the 

next WMB Agenda will include discussion of the Meter Reading Agreement and Right of Entry 

Form, the function and membership of the Technical Advisory Committee, and establishment of 

a bank account.    

   

III. STANDING AND AD-HOC BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 A. STANDING: 

  1. Operations and Infrastructure.  No report. 

 B. AD-HOC: 

  a. Stipulated Judgment Implementation.  No report. 

  b. Risk Management/Pandemic.  No report 

  c. Grant Funding.  No report. 

  d. Association of California Water Agencies/Joint Powers Authority.  No 

report. 

  e. Organizational Staffing.  No report. 

  f. Prop 218 and BWD Developers’ Policy.  No report. 

 

IV. MONTHLY FINANCIAL & OPERATIONS REPORTS 

 A. Financial Reports: August 2020: 

  1. Water and Sewer Revenue Update.  Jessica Clabaugh presented data on 

account balances, cash flow, income and projections.  Air quality cost reports were moved from 

operational expenses to professional services.  Legal services were high, notably in the 

groundwater management area, and salaries were high due to cashed out vacation time.  Work on 

the Bending Elbow pipeline continues.  A small leak on Circle J was repaired.  Downstream is 

continuing to video the sewer system.  Ms. Clabaugh reviewed the balance sheet for the sewer 

system, including the wastewater treatment plant, Town Center Sewer and related infrastructure.   

 B. Water and Wastewater Operations Report: August 2020:  The Water and 

Wastewater Operations Report was included in the Board package. 

8



Minutes:  September 22, 2020 3 

 C. Water Production/Use Records: August 2020:  The Water Production/Use 

Records were included in the Board package. 

   

V. STAFF REPORTS 

 A. Administration:  Diana Del Bono reported there were some technical issues with 

the bank involving the scanner, but they have been resolved.  Ms. Garcia is working on the new 

billing system.  Phone calls are coming in regarding the recent certified letter announcing the 

Stipulated Judgment.  Staff has a clarifying statement and is referring people to the website.  A 

newsletter on the subject was included with the last bills.  The emergency procedures update is 

nearing completion, as is the year-end paperwork.  Director Johnson asked Ms. Del Bono to e-

mail the statement on the Stipulated Judgment to the Board members. 

 B. Wastewater Operations:  Roy Martinez reported that wastewater operations were 

going smoothly.  Downstream is inspecting the lines on Palm Canyon Drive, and a report should 

be available for the next meeting.   

 C. Water Operations:  Alan Asche reported there were no emergency repairs during 

the past month.  Meter replacement is continuing, and some paving repairs are underway on Club 

Circle and Lazy S.  A new breaker was installed in Well 8.  Mr. Asche plans to institute an 

annual pump inspection program.  The De Anza project is nearly complete.  Control Systems, 

Inc. has been selected for the new SCADA system, and work is underway.  Staff is getting ready 

for the upcoming WMB meter reading.   The monthly sampling reports were good.  The lead and 

copper test, required every three years, has been completed.  The results have not yet been 

received, but any negative results are generally transmitted right away. 

 D. General Manager:   David Dale reported that the Bending Elbow project is 75 

percent complete, and the De Anza pipeline is nearly finished.  He is working with the Fire 

Department on fire flow issues.  Mr. Poole explained that there are nearly nine miles of pipelines 

without the needed fire flow, and they can’t all be repaired at once.  The Fire Chief is aware of it 

and knows how to deal with the issue using pumper trucks and high flow hydrants.  BWD is 

working on affordable, long-term solutions.  Director Johnson suggested looking into grants, and 

Mr. Poole said that Mr. Dale had investigated some low-interest loans from USDA.  Information 

on Woodard & Curran, grant consultants, will be included on the next Agenda. 

  1. BWD letter sent to San Diego County regarding nuisance and improperly 

abandoned well.  Mr. Poole invited the Board’s attention to correspondence in the Board package 

between BWD and the County.  

 

VI. CLOSED SESSION 

 A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to 

Government Code paragraph (3) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9 (Two (2) potential cases): 

 B. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation (BWD v. All Persons Who 

Claim a right to Extract Groundwater, et al. (San Diego Superior Court case no. 37-2020-

00005776)): 

 C. Replacement Well Number Two Site – Conference with Real Property 

Negotiators (Gov. Code Section 54956.8); Property APN: APN 198-270-13-00, 36.53 acres; 

BWD Negotiator: Geoff Poole; Negotiating Parties: Geoff Poole, General Manager and Owner: 

Borrego Springs Unified School District: Price and Terms of Payment: 

 D. Performance Evaluation of General Manager: GM Performance Review – 

Conference for Public Employee Performance Evaluation – Title: General Manager Employee 

Performance Review – pursuant to subdivision (d)(4) of Government Code Section 54957: 

 The Board adjourned to closed session at 10:40 a.m., and thereafter, the open session 

reconvened.  There was no reportable action. 

 

9



Minutes:  September 22, 2020 4 

VII. CLOSING PROCEDURE 

 The next Board Meeting is scheduled for October 13, 2020, to be available on line.  See 

Board Agenda at BorregoWD.org for details, available at least 72 hours before the meeting.  

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned. 

10



BORREGO WATER DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

OCTOBER 28, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM II.A 

 

 

October 22, 2020 

 

 

TO:   Board of Directors 

 

FROM: Geoffrey Poole, General Manager 

 

SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 2020-10-01 Approving a Purchase and Sale Agreement with Borrego Springs 

Unified School District for the Acquisition of Real Property, Making CEQA-Related Findings, and 

Authorizing Staff to File Notice of Exemption 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 

Approve Resolution No.2020-10-01 Approving a Purchase and Sale Agreement With Borrego Springs Unified 

School District for the Acquisition of Real Property, Making CEQA-Related Findings, and Authorizing Staff 

to File Notice of Exemption 

 

ITEM EXPLANATION: 
 

Borrego Water District desires to purchase certain real property located at Tilting T at Di Giorgio Road 

(APN 198-270-1300) from Borrego Springs Unified School District through a purchase and sale 

agreement.  This action is not a project subject to CEQA pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines section 

15004(2)(A) because the transfer of property does not authorize any actions which may impact the 

environment and Borrego Water District conditions the development of the property on future CEQA 

review.  It is also exempt from CEQA under State CEQA Guidelines section 15061(b)(3) because it can be 

seen with certainty that the transfer of ownership of property will not have a significant effect on the 

environment. 

  

Recommended Action: Adopt Resolution No. ___ approving the purchase and sale agreement with Borrego 

Springs Unified School District and directing staff to file a Notice of Exemption within five days of 

approval. 

 

NEXT STEPS: 

1. File NOE 

2. Continue with development of bid documents  

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   

Cost of Parcel = $60,000 plus costs 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution and Notice of Exemption  

 

 

11



RESOLUTION NO 2020-10-01 OF THE 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF BORREGO WATER DISTRICT APPROVING A PURCHASE 

AND SALE AGREEMENT WITH BORREGO SPRINGS UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR 

THE ACQUISITION OF REAL PROPERTY; MAKING CEQA-RELATED FINDINGS AND 

AUTHORIZING STAFF TO FILE NOTICE OF EXEMPTION   

 

 

 WHEREAS, Borrego Springs Unified School District (“Seller”) is the owner of that certain 

real property located at Tilting T at Di Giorgio Road, Community of Borrego Springs, County of 

San Diego, State of California, referred to as Assessor’s Parcel Number 198-270-13-00 

(“Property”); and  

 

WHEREAS, Seller desires to sell the Property to Borrego Water District, and Borrego 

Water District desires to purchase the Property from Seller, through a Purchase and Sale 

Agreement, which includes joint escrow instructions, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A and 

incorporated herein (the “Agreement”); and  

 

WHEREAS, Borrego Water District has conditioned the future development of the Property 

parcel on future review under the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) pursuant to this 

Resolution, and has identified the Property as the preferred location for future Borrego Water 

District facilities; and  

 

WHEREAS, District staff has determined that the Seller’s conveyance of the Property to 

Borrego Water District is not a project under CEQA, pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines section 

15004(2)(A) because: (1) the conveyance does not authorize any actions which may directly or 

indirectly impact the environment; (2) the Agreement would not commit Borrego Water District to 

the approval of a future development within a narrowly defined set of parameters; and (3) Borrego 

Water District has and will make any future approvals subject to appropriate review under CEQA; 

and  

 

WHEREAS, Borrego Water District’s purchase of the Property is also exempt under State 

CEQA Guidelines section 15061(b)(3) because it will merely result in a change in ownership of the 

Property, with no change in its existing uses and no possibility of any direct or indirect impacts on 

the environment. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of Directors of the Borrego Water 

District, as follows: 

 

1. The Board of Directors hereby approves and accepts the conveyance of the Property 

from Seller by and pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth in the Agreement.  The Board of 

Directors hereby authorizes and directs the Board President or her designee to execute the 

Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit “A.” 

 

2. Based on the entire record before Borrego Water District, including all written and 

oral evidence presented, the Board of Directors finds that the approval of the Agreement, including 

the conveyance and execution of the Agreement, is not a project under CEQA pursuant to State 

CEQA Guidelines section 15004(2)(A), which authorizes agencies to enter into land acquisition 

agreements prior to the completion of environmental review so long as the future use of the site is 

conditioned on future CEQA compliance.  Specifically, the approval and execution of the 

12



Agreement is not a project under CEQA because: (1) the conveyance does not authorize any actions 

which may directly or indirectly impact the environment; (2) the Agreement would not commit 

Borrego Water District to the approval of a future development within a narrowly defined set of 

parameters; and (3) Borrego Water District has and will make any future approvals subject to 

appropriate review under CEQA, as set forth above in this Resolution.   

 

Furthermore, the Board of Directors finds that the approval of the Agreement, including the 

conveyance and execution of the Agreement, is exempt from further environmental review pursuant 

to State CEQA Guidelines, section 15061(b)(3) because it can be seen with certainty that the 

approval of the Agreement will result in the transfer of ownership of the Property and there is no 

possibility that it will have a significant effect on the environment.  None of the exceptions to this 

categorical exemption applies, and consequently, this action is exempt from further CEQA review. 

 

3. The Board of Directors hereby directs that all documents and other materials 

constituting the record of proceedings related to this Resolution be maintained by the General 

Manager of the Borrego Water District, or his designee, on file at the Borrego Water District, 806 

Palm Canyon Drive, Borrego Springs, California 92004. 

 

4. The Board of Directors directs Staff to file a Notice of Exemption with the County 

Clerk for the County of San Diego within five (5) days from the adoption of this Resolution. 

  

 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Borrego 

Water District held on the __th day of October 2020, by the following vote:   

 

   Ayes: 

 

   Noes: 

 

Absent: 

 

 
_________________________________ 

President, Board of Directors of 

Borrego Water District 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 

Secretary of the Board of Directors of 

Borrego Water District 

 
 

13



 

NOTICE OF EXEMPTION 

TO: 

 

Office of Planning and Research 

P. O. Box 3044, Room 113 

Sacramento, CA  95812-3044 

FROM: 

(Public 

Agency) 

Borrego Water District 

806 Palm Canyon Drive 

Borrego Springs, CA 92004 

Telephone: (760) 767-5806  

 San Diego County Clerk 

1600 Pacific Highway, Room 260 

San Diego, CA 92101 

  

 

1. Project Title: Adoption of Resolution No. 2020-10-01 of the Board of 

Directors of the Borrego Water District approving a 

Purchase and Sale Agreement With Borrego Springs 

Unified School District for the Acquisition of Real 

Property 

  

 

2. Project Applicant: Borrego Water District 

3. Project Location – Identify street address and 

cross streets or attach a map showing project 

site (preferably a USGS 15’ or 7 1/2’ 

topographical map identified by quadrangle 

name): 

Certain real property located at Tilting T at Di Giorgio 

Road, Community of Borrego Springs, County of San 

Diego, referred to as Assessor’s Parcel Number 198-270-

13-00 

4. (a) Project Location – City and County:   Borrego Springs, County of San Diego 

5. Description of nature, purpose, and 

beneficiaries of Project: 

On October 28, 2020, the Board of Directors of the 

Borrego Water District approved the purchase of certain 

real property located in the community of Borrego 

Springs identified as APN 198-270-13-00 (“Property”) 

pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth in the 

Purchase and Sale Agreement with Borrego Springs 

Unified School District. 

The Borrego Water District has identified the Property as 

the potential location for future District facilities, and 

conditioned the future development of the Property, if 

any, on future review under the California Environmental 

Quality Act (“CEQA”).  

 

6. Name of Public Agency approving project: Borrego Water District 

7. Name of Person or Agency undertaking the 

project, including any person undertaking an 

activity that receives financial assistance from 

the Public Agency as part of the activity or the 

person receiving a lease, permit, license, 

certificate, or other entitlement of use from the 

Public Agency as part of the activity: 

Borrego Water District 

8. Exempt status:  (check one)  

 (a)  Ministerial project. (Pub. Res. Code § 21080(b)(1); State CEQA Guidelines 

§ 15268) 

14



 (b)  Not a project. (State CEQA Guidelines § 15004(2)(A)) 

 (c)  Emergency Project. (Pub. Res. Code § 21080(b)(4); State CEQA Guidelines 

§ 15269(b),(c)) 

 (d)  Categorical Exemption.   

  State type and section 

number: 

 

 (e)  Declared Emergency (Pub. Res. Code § 21080(b)(3); State CEQA Guidelines 

§ 15269(a)) 

 (f)  Statutory Exemption.   

  State Code section number: 

 

 (g)  Other.  Explanation: (State CEQA Guidelines § 15061(b)(3)) 

9. Reason why project was exempt: The approval of the Purchase and Sale Agreement for the 

Property is not a project under CEQA pursuant to State 

CEQA Guidelines section 15004(2)(A), which authorizes 

agencies to enter into land acquisition agreements prior 

to the completion of environmental review so long as the 

future use of the site is conditioned on future CEQA 

compliance.  Specifically, the approval and execution of 

the Agreement is not a project under CEQA pursuant to 

section 15004 because: (1) the conveyance does not 

authorize any actions which may directly or indirectly 

impact the environment; (2) the Agreement would not 

commit Borrego Water District to the approval of a 

future development within a narrowly defined set of 

parameters; and (3) Borrego Water District has and will 

make any future approvals subject to appropriate review 

under CEQA, as set forth in the Resolution.   

In addition, State CEQA Guidelines section 15061(b)(3) 

exempts projects from CEQA if it can be seen with 

certainty that there is no possibility that the activity in 

question may have a significant effect on the 

environment.  Here, the approval of the Purchase and 

Sale Agreement merely involves a transfer of ownership 

of the Property in its existing use.  Any future actions 

and approvals by Borrego Water District to develop the 

Property will be subject to CEQA review at that time.  

None of the exceptions to the use of this exemption as 

outlined in State CEQA Guidelines section 15300.2 

apply here.   

 

10. Lead Agency Contact Person: Geoff Poole, General Manager 

Telephone: (760) 767-5806 

11. If filed by applicant: Attach Preliminary Exemption Assessment (Form “A”) before filing. 

12. Has a Notice of Exemption been filed by the public agency approving the project?  Yes    No  

13. Was a public hearing held by the Lead Agency to consider the exemption?  Yes   No  

If yes, the date of the public hearing was: __________________ 

 

15



Signature:__________________________________        Date:_______________    

Title:__________________________ 

Name: 

   Signed by Lead Agency              Signed by Applicant 

Date Received for Filing:          

(Clerk Stamp Here)  

 

Authority cited:  Sections 21083 and 21110, Public Resources Code. 

Reference: Sections 21108, 21152, and 21152.1, Public Resources Code. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

16



 

BORREGO WATER DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

OCTOBER 28, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM II.B 

 

 

October 22, 2020 

 

 

TO:   Board of Directors 

 

FROM: Geoffrey Poole, General Manager 

 

SUBJECT:  2nd Production Well: Project Schedule & Biology, Cultural and California 

Environmental Quality Act – Dudek Eng.  

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  

Receive Staff Report on the Schedule for Replacement Well #2 

 

ITEM EXPLANATION: 

Representatives from Dudek Engineering will be on hand to update the Board on the status of 

Replacement Well #2 

 

NEXT STEPS: 

Continue with Design and Bidding Process 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   

TBD 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Information from Dudek 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

17



B o a r d  M e e t i n g

2nd Production Well Location

O c t o b e r  1 3 ,  2 0 2 0

Borrego Water District

D R A F T  W O R K  P R O D U C T

18



B o r r e g o  Wa t e r  D i s t r i c t

2nd Production Well (BSUSD site)

D R A F T  W O R K  P R O D U C T2

❑West of Club Circle Resort Golf Course and 

near existing BWD production wells ID5-4 

and ID5-5

❑ APN 198-27-013

❑ 36.53 acre site predominantly undeveloped 

except for some dirt roads and trails

❑ Phase I Environmental Site Assessment 

completed

❑ Biological and Cultural Resources Surveys in 

progress as part of CEQA process

19



B o r r e g o  Wa t e r  D i s t r i c t

Biological and Cultural Resources Identified on Site

D R A F T  W O R K  P R O D U C T3

❑ Biological survey conclusions:

❑ No federal or state-listed species were found to have a 

potential to occur on site

❑ Three special-status plant species with a moderate 

potential to occur and six special-status wildlife species 

with moderate potential to occur.

❑ Recommend project footprint stay within the disturbance 

limits to reduce impacts

❑ Two cultural resources identified, BWD2PW-SW-S-001 & 

BWD2PW-SW-I-001:

❑ Considered not significant under CEQA and not eligible 

for listing on California Register of Historical Resources. 

❑ Resources that have been found not significant under 

CEQA require no further consideration or mitigation.

❑ Focused biological survey to be performed based on 

anticipated disturbance footprint (see next slide). 20



B o r r e g o  Wa t e r  D i s t r i c t

Estimated Extent of Drilling Footprint

D R A F T  W O R K  P R O D U C T4

21



B o r r e g o  Wa t e r  D i s t r i c t

2nd Production Well Anticipated Schedule

D R A F T  W O R K  P R O D U C T5

Phases

1 Site Acquisit ion

2

3 Well Construction Phase

4 Well Development and Testing Phase

5 Permitt ing and Plumbing Phase

Yr 2020 Yr 2020 Yr 2020 Yr 2020 Yr 2020 Yr 2020 Yr 2020 Yr 2020 Yr 2020 Yr 2020 Yr 2021 Yr 2021 Yr 2021 Yr 2021 Yr 2021 Yr 2021

March April May June July August September October November December January February March April May June

Phase Phase 

No

Project Name
1 8 15 22 29 5 12 19 26 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 21 28 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 4 11 18 25 1 8 15 22 29 6 13 20 27 3 10 17 24 7 14 21 28 7 14 21 28 4 11 18 25 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 4 11 18 25 1 8 15 22 29 5 12 19 26 3 10 17 24

Site Acquisition 1.1 Well Locating

Site Acquisition 1.2 Land Acquisition

Bid Phase 2.1 Revise Bid Package/Bid 

Package Available

Bid Phase 2.2 Bid review

Bid Phase 2.3 Bid granted and Notice to 

Proceed

Well Construction 

Phase

3.1 Drill  Rig Mobilization

Well Construction 

Phase

3.2 Pilot Borehole

Well Construction 

Phase

3.3 Well Design and Casing and 

F ilter Pack  Delivery

Well Construction 

Phase

3.4 Borehole Reaming and 

Construction

Well Development and 

Testing Phase

4.1 Well Development

Well Development and 

Testing Phase

4.2 Aquifer Test

Well Development and 

Testing Phase

4.3 Disinfection

Permitting and 

Plumbing Phase

5.1 Well Completion Report Title 

22 and DWSAP Permitting

Permitting and 

Plumbing Phase

5.2 Well Hookup with Water 

Supply System

Yr 2021

September

Yr 2021

October

Borrego Water District  New Well Drilling Projected 

Schedule - Second Extraction Well

Bid Phase

Yr 2021

July

Yr 2021

August

22



B o r r e g o  Wa t e r  D i s t r i c t

Next Steps in Process

❑ Complete focused biological survey/CEQA Approach is likely a Notice of Exemption

❑ Dudek to Revise and Prepare Bid Documents

❑ Advertisement

❑ Pre-bid meeting at site with prospective bidders

❑ Review bids

❑ Selection of contractor

❑ Notice of Award

❑ Notice to Proceed

❑Well permit

❑ Submittals from contractor

❑Mobilize to site and begin work

D R A F T  W O R K  P R O D U C T6

23



Borrego Water District

QUESTIONS?

Board Meeting -

October 13, 2020

7

24



 

BORREGO WATER DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

OCTOBER 28, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM II.C 

 

 

October 22, 2020 

 

 

TO:   Board of Directors 

 

FROM: Geoffrey Poole, General Manager 

 

SUBJECT:  Schedule for San Diego County Water Authority Borrego Springs Outreach on 

Regional Conveyance System – K Dice/G Poole 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  

Announce Meeting Time/Date for Borrego Springs specific outreach 

 

ITEM EXPLANATION: 

The San Diego County Water Authority will be holding an outreach session on its potential Regional 

Conveyance System to transport 280,000 afy through/near the Borrego Springs area. The date will 

be November 5th at 1:00 to 2:30 PM. 

 

NEXT STEPS: 

N/A 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   

TBD 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. None 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

25



 

BORREGO WATER DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

OCTOBER 28, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM II.D 

 

 

October 22, 2020 

 

 

TO:   Board of Directors 

 

FROM: Geoffrey Poole, General Manager 

 

SUBJECT:  Interim Borrego Springs Subbasin Watermaster Board – G Poole, D Duncan/K Dice -  

1. TAC Meeting Summary – D Duncan/G Poole 

2. Hemp Farming in Anza Response - D Duncan/G Poole 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  

Announce Meeting Time/Date for Borrego Springs specific outreach 

 

ITEM EXPLANATION: 

1. The Watermaster TAC has scheduled its first meeting on October 27 and a verbal report will 

be provided on the discussions. 

2. The Watermaster Board agreed to write a letter on the topic of hemp farming in Anza. If a 

draft is ready to share by the BWD Board Meeting, it will be presented 

 

NEXT STEPS: 

N/A 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   

TBD 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. None 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

26



 

BORREGO WATER DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

OCTOBER 28, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM II.E 

 

 

October 22, 2020 

 

 

TO:   Board of Directors 

 

FROM: Geoffrey Poole, General Manager 

 

SUBJECT:  Transfer of three EDU’s  

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

Approve transfer 

 

ITEM EXPLANATION: 

Rosalva Thomas Siercks is requesting to transfer three (3) EDU’s to Juan C. Vazquez.  Notarized 

forms from each party have been received, 

 

NEXT STEPS: 

Board Approval for transfer of EDU’s 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Town Center Sewer (TSC) EDU Assignment/Transfer Forms for Siercks and Vazquez 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

27



28



29



30



31



IV.A 

September Financials 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



IV.B 

September Wastewater 

Operations Report 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

48



49



50



51



52



53



54



IV.C 

September Water Production 

Report 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

55



8

                                               WATER PRODUCTION SUMMARY
SEPEMBER 2020

WATER WATER WATER ID4 ID4 ID4 TOTAL TOTAL
DATE USE PROD %NRW USE PROD %NRW USE PROD
Sep-18 34.31 37.40 8.26 105.93 117.15 9.58 140.24 154.55

Oct-18 29.96 30.42 1.49 118.14 129.33 8.65 148.10 159.74

Nov-18 24.75 25.62 3.41 100.65 109.27 7.89 125.39 134.89

Dec-18 16.14 22.36 27.80 71.19 80.13 11.16 87.33 102.49

Jan-19 14.91 16.84 11.47 58.48 64.29 9.04 73.39 81.13

Feb-19 14.99 16.06 6.70 58.89 66.49 11.42 73.88 82.55

Mar-19 15.35 15.75 2.51 55.83 62.48 10.65 71.18 78.23

Apr-19 20.31 20.97 3.18 90.96 98.41 7.57 111.26 119.38

May-19 23.79 25.13 5.33 83.92 92.63 9.41 107.70 117.76

Jun-19 36.31 37.19 2.36 93.43 96.69 3.37 129.74 133.88

Jul-19 44.09 45.49 3.08 115.58 123.04 6.07 159.67 168.53

Aug-19 37.02 38.56 3.99 111.63 114.37 2.39 148.65 152.92

Sep-19 40.68 39.71 -2.45 109.34 120.76 9.45 150.03 160.47

Oct-19 34.33 35.76 3.99 118.92 123.91 4.03 153.25 159.66

Nov-19 27.05 28.10 3.76 94.68 103.96 8.92 121.73 132.06

Dec-19 13.51 14.99 9.82 59.08 64.93 9.01 72.59 79.91

Jan-20 16.96 17.70 4.20 69.52 74.80 7.06 86.48 92.50

Feb-20 16.19 16.83 3.78 65.77 69.21 4.97 81.96 86.04

Mar-20 19.63 21.05 6.71 65.62 70.22 6.55 85.26 91.27

Apr-20 14.68 15.60 5.84 68.77 76.03 9.55 83.46 91.63

May-20 22.22 23.30 4.60 88.23 95.25 7.37 110.45 118.54

Jun-20 54.17 53.21 -1.80 108.31 123.77 12.49 162.48 176.98

Jul-20 36.88 39.91 7.60 102.30 118.18 13.44 139.18 158.09

Aug-20 34.92 36.30 3.78 110.63 126.05 12.23 145.56 162.35

Jun-20 35.53 36.29 2.09 124.86 138.15 9.62 160.40 174.44

                12 Mo. TOTAL 326.09 339.02 4.53 89.72 98.70 8.77 1402.78 1523.48

Totals reflect Water (ID1 & ID3) and ID4 (ID4 & ID5) .  Interties to SA3 are no longer needed to be
separated. ID4 and SA5 are combined because all water production is pumped from ID4.
All figures are in Acre Feet of water pumped.

                                    NON-REVENUE WATER SUMMARY (%)

DATE WATER ID-4 ID-5 DISTRICT-WIDE AVERAGE
Sep-20 2.09 9.62 N/A 5.86

            12 Mo. Average 4.53 8.77 N/A 6.65

56



V. STAFF REPORTS - 

VERBAL 
A. Administration – Diana Del Bono 

1. High Water Bill Waiver Policy Update 

 

B. Waste Water Operations – Roy Martinez 

 

C. Water Operations – Alan Asche 

 

D. Engineering – David Dale 

 

E. General Manager - G Poole 

1. Recognition of Retiring Director Ray Delahay 

57




